



GROUP INSURANCE COMMISSION MEETING
Thursday, March 5, 2026
8:30 A.M.-10:00 A.M.

Meeting held virtually through online audio-video platform (ZOOM) and accessible on the GIC’s YouTube channel.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING

NUMBER: 	Seven Hundred and Two
DATE:		March 5, 2026
TIME:		8:30 A.M.
PLACE:	Meeting held virtually through online audio-video platform (ZOOM) and accessible on the GIC’s YouTube channel

Commissioners Present
VALERIE SULLIVAN (Chair, Public Member)
BOBBI KAPLAN (Vice Chair, NAGE)
MATTHEW GORZKOWICZ (Secretary of Administration and Finance) Designee: Dana Sullivan
MICHAEL CALJOUW (Commissioner of Insurance) Designee: Rebecca Butler
DARREN AMBLER (Public Member)
MARTIN CURLEY (Public Safety)
TAMARA P. DAVIS (Public Member)
JANE EDMONDS (Retiree)
GERZINO GUIRAND (Council 93, AFSCME, AFL-CIO)
EILEEN P. MCANNENY (Public Member)
KRISTIN PEPIN (NAGE)
DEAN ROBINSON (Massachusetts Teachers Association)
JASON SILVA (Massachusetts Municipal Association)
ANNA SINAIKO, Ph.D. (Health Economist)
CATHERINE WEST (Public Member)

I. Introduction and Approval of the Minutes
At 8:30 A.M., the Chair called the meeting to order and announced the Commissioners in attendance. The Chair then turned the meeting over to Executive Director Veno to review the agenda for the meeting.
Executive Director Veno reviewed the agenda and then returned the meeting to the Chair.
The Chair announced that there were no minutes to vote on, but that the next meeting would include a vote for both the current meeting and the meeting from February 26, 2026.

II. Executive Director’s Report
Presented by Matthew Veno, Executive Director, and Members of Senior Staff
The Executive Director stated that there were two open positions that the GIC was looking to fill. Both positions were posted on MassCareers. He requested that Commissioners encourage any qualified candidates to apply.
He noted that eleven (11) municipalities were joining the GIC and that staff was working with them to facilitate their transition.
He also gave a brief synopsis of the Governor’s health care affordability working group, of which he is a member.

III. FY2027 Rate Approval (VOTE)
Presented by Margaret Anshutz, Director of Health Policy and Analysis; Cameron McBean, Director of Vendor Management; and Jennifer Hewitt, Chief Financial Officer
Ms. Anshutz stated that the purpose of the presentation was to review plan-specific rates for health coverage options and vote on them. The presentation included both Non-Medicare and Medicare plans. WTW actuaries develop these rates annually based on past utilization, anticipated membership within each plan, and anticipated total claims costs.
She provided a definition of premiums and explained how premium costs are divided between employers and members. She reminded Commissioners that, with the exception of the Medicare Advantage product, all GIC plans are self-insured.
Ms. Anshutz presented information on the factors driving premium increases, noting that high and rising provider pricing and pharmaceutical costs were the primary contributors. She presented average premium increases ranging from 3–4% on the low end to 12.01% on the high end. Fifty percent of enrollees were expected to experience a rate increase of less than 7%; however, 5% of enrollees were expected to experience a rate increase of more than 12%. She urged members to evaluate plan options to determine whether a less expensive option could meet their health care needs.
She presented individual rates by plan, comparing FY26 to FY27 rates, followed by family plan rates. She also presented a comprehensive chart of all plans with the associated proposed rates and percentage increases over FY26 rates. Mass General Brigham (MGB) Complete was projected to have the highest increase at 13.6%. Ms. Anshutz then presented the proposed non-municipal member contribution rates, followed by full-cost Medicare premiums and proposed member contribution rates for Medicare plans.
The Executive Director emphasized that members were encouraged to shop and evaluate plans to determine whether there were options that met their needs with either lower increases or lower overall premiums.
Commissioner Davis asked whether the lower-cost plans had higher deductibles and copays and asked why they were lower in cost. Ms. Anshutz replied that those plans generally had more limited provider networks and lower or equivalent deductibles.
Vice Chair Kaplan commended GIC staff for the rate development process. She noted that even the lowest increase of 4% effectively eliminated the value of recent salary increases received by state employees and that higher increases were double or more those salary increases. She stated that the increases negatively affected members, many of whom were also losing GLP-1 medication coverage for weight loss.
Commissioner Davis stated that health care costs were skyrocketing and that the increases presented were still lower than those seen in the corporate sector. She stated that this demonstrated an urgent need to examine how health care prices are set and how payment for care is structured. She referenced a suggestion made by Commissioner McAnneny at the prior meeting regarding the need for a new structure.
Commissioner Robinson stated that while a 7.5% increase was lower than national averages, he wanted clarification on how that figure had been determined. He noted that prescription drug costs had increased dramatically, while primary and specialty care costs had risen approximately 3–7%. Given the elimination of GLP-1 coverage, he asked what justified the 7.5% overall increase.
Ms. Anshutz stated that although GLP-1 medications had received significant attention, the GIC is also seeing risings pricing and spending for a variety of other covered drugs. Provider prices and coding increases that raise reimbursement levels were also contributing factors. She stated that a more detailed breakdown could be provided.
Commissioner Davis moved to approve the recommended FY27 non-Medicare premiums and Medicare full-cost premiums as presented. Commissioner Ambler seconded the motion. The General Counsel conducted a roll call vote.
· Chair Sullivan voted aye
· Vice Chair Kaplan voted no
· Designee Sullivan voted yes
· Designee Butler voted aye
· Commissioner Ambler voted aye
· Commissioner Curley voted no
· Commissioner Davis voted aye
· Commissioner Edmonds voted aye
· Commissioner Guirand voted no
· Commissioner McAnneny voted yes
· Commissioner Pepin voted no
· Commissioner Robinson voted no
· Commissioner Silva voted yes
· Commissioner Sinaiko voted aye
· Commissioner West voted yes
The motion passed, with Commissioners Kaplan, Curley, Guirand, Pepin, and Robinson opposed.
Mr. McBean then presented the FY27 dental and vision rates. He reminded Commissioners that the dental plan is fully insured for active employees, while retiree plans are funded entirely by participants. He stated that the plans would experience small increases due to contractual limits. He presented rates for retiree plans, active plans, and vision plans. He noted that the vision plan is self-insured and that rates had been developed with the assistance of the GIC’s consultant, Lockton. He then presented the proposed combined Dental and Vision rates for FY27.
The Chair asked what percentage of retirees elected dental insurance. Mr. McBean stated that total enrollment was approximately 15,000 participants and reiterated that the retiree plan is fully participant funded.
Vice Chair Kaplan asked about the distribution between family and individual retiree plans. Director of Operations Paul Murphy provided the enrollment figures: for state retirees, 24,963 individuals were enrolled in retiree dental plans and 20,104 in family plans; for municipal retirees, 1,410 were enrolled in individual plans and 1,214 in family plans.  Mr. McBean reminded Commissioners that the active plans are available only to non-union employees of the Commonwealth. He then presented the proposed FY27 member contribution rates.
Designee Sullivan moved to approve the FY27 dental and vision rates. Commissioner Davis seconded the motion. The General Counsel conducted a roll call vote.
· Chair Sullivan voted aye
· Vice Chair Kaplan voted aye
· Designee Sullivan voted yes
· Designee Butler voted aye
· Commissioner Ambler voted aye
· Commissioner Curley voted aye
· Commissioner Davis voted aye
· Commissioner Edmonds voted aye
· Commissioner Guirand voted aye
· Commissioner McAnneny voted yes by raising her hand due to technical difficulties
· Commissioner Pepin voted aye
· Commissioner Robinson voted aye
· Commissioner Silva voted yes
· Commissioner Sinaiko voted aye
· Commissioner West voted yes
The motion passed unanimously.
Ms. Hewitt then presented the FY27 municipal administrative fee. She reminded Commissioners that the GIC is authorized to charge municipalities up to 1% to administer benefits, but the rate had previously been reduced as premiums have increased. She stated that the GIC recommended maintaining the current 0.25% rate for FY27.
Vice Chair Kaplan asked what total amount had been retained in the prior year and, including the eleven new municipalities, what the total number of municipal entities participating in the GIC would be. Ms. Hewitt stated that the FY26 retained amount was approximately $2.2 million and that the total number of municipal entities would increase to sixty-eight (68). Vice Chair Kaplan also asked about projected FY27 retention, and Ms. Hewitt stated that it was projected to be approximately $2.3 million.
Commissioner Davis asked whether the GIC had evaluated the expense side of GIC operations and whether the increase in municipal entities would require additional staffing or other expenditures. She also asked whether the 0.25% fee would still cover anticipated expenses. Ms. Hewitt stated that the FY27 budget included a proposed realignment so that as membership increased, the percentage allocation would increase accordingly. The Executive Director stated that staffing needs are continually being evaluated and that Morgan Simko, who had recently been hired, was managing many municipal inquiries. Commissioner Davis also asked about the potentially unique needs of municipal entities, and the Executive Director stated that it would be a valuable topic for a future meeting.
Vice Chair Kaplan moved to approve the FY27 proposed municipal administrative fee of 0.25%. Commissioner Ambler seconded the motion. The General Counsel conducted a roll call vote.
· Chair Sullivan voted aye
· Vice Chair Kaplan voted aye
· Designee Sullivan voted yes
· Designee Butler voted aye
· Commissioner Ambler voted aye
· Commissioner Curley voted aye
· Commissioner Davis voted aye
· Commissioner Edmonds voted aye
· Commissioner Guirand voted aye
· Commissioner McAnneny voted yes by raising her hand due to technical difficulties
· Commissioner Pepin voted aye
· Commissioner Robinson voted aye
· Commissioner Silva voted yes
· Commissioner Sinaiko voted aye
· Commissioner West voted yes
The motion passed unanimously.

IV. PBM Consultant Procurement Recommendation (VOTE)
Presented by Cameron McBean, Director of Vendor Management
Mr. McBean presented information regarding the Pharmacy Benefit Management Consultant procurement, noting that the bidders were WTW, Mercer, The Segal Group, Milliman, and Lockton. He reviewed the procurement objectives and stated that WTW, Mercer, and The Segal Group had been selected as finalists. He presented the scoring results and noted that all three finalists had submitted strong proposals. The procurement team recommended Mercer as the apparent successful bidder for Commission approval. Commissioner Davis asked whether it would be more cost-effective to consolidate consultant needs into one package or whether the required expertise necessitated separate procurements. The Executive Director stated that those considerations are evaluated during procurement planning. The General Counsel added that procurement scopes must clearly define consultant responsibilities and stated that it would be difficult to design one procurement capable of covering all GIC consulting needs while meeting timing requirements.
Commissioner Robinson asked whether the consultant negotiates contracts and pricing and whether those contracts are publicly available. He also asked whether consultants were attempting to carve out GLP-1 medications to obtain more favorable pricing. The Executive Director stated that GIC contracts with vendors are public records, but that contracts between vendors and their subcontractors, such as PBMs and drug manufacturers, are not public records. He noted that the GIC seeks greater visibility into those arrangements and that the market is increasingly moving toward non-traditional and more transparent PBM structures. He further stated that the GIC seeks greater flexibility to carve out medications where beneficial.
Vice Chair Kaplan requested additional explanation regarding why Mercer had been viewed as the strongest proposal and asked what constituted “best value.” Mr. McBean stated that Mercer’s technical proposal responses were more impressive than those of its peers and that Mercer’s pharmacy lead had presented novel ideas and insights during interviews. Vice Chair Kaplan also asked how many public sector entities had contracted with Mercer. Mr. McBean stated that Mercer had previously served as the GIC’s consultant prior to WTW and had extensive public sector experience.
Commissioner Davis asked whether Mercer maintained a local office. Mr. McBean stated that the GIC would receive ample support from Mercer’s local office, although the pharmacy lead was not based locally. He noted that most meetings are conducted virtually, reducing the significance of geographic location.
Commissioner Davis moved to authorize the GIC to contract with Mercer as the apparent successful bidder for PBM consultation services, as recommended by the procurement team. Vice Chair Kaplan seconded the motion. The General Counsel conducted a roll call vote.
· Chair Sullivan voted aye
· Vice Chair Kaplan voted aye
· Designee Sullivan voted yes
· Designee Butler voted aye
· Commissioner Ambler voted aye
· Commissioner Curley voted aye
· Commissioner Davis voted aye
· Commissioner Edmonds voted aye
· Commissioner Guirand voted aye
· Commissioner McAnneny voted yes
· Commissioner Pepin voted aye
· Commissioner Robinson voted aye
· Commissioner Silva voted yes
· Commissioner Sinaiko voted aye
· Commissioner West voted yes
The motion passed unanimously.
The General Counsel reminded Commissioners that the contract would be signed following the procurement process and that all materials would be made available for Commission review if requested.

V. Vida Health Update (INFORM)
Presented by Erika Scibelli, Deputy Executive Director
The Executive Director began by reminding Commissioners that GLP-1 medications would continue to be covered for diabetes, metabolic dysfunction-associated steatohepatitis (M.A.S.H.), cardiovascular disease with obesity, and moderate-to-severe obstructive sleep apnea with obesity. He clarified that the Commission’s vote eliminated coverage only for members prescribed GLP-1 medications solely for obesity treatment.
The Chair left the meeting at 9:45 A.M. after turning the meeting over to the Vice Chair.
Deputy Executive Director Scibelli presented an update on Vida Health. She reminded Commissioners that the data was continually evolving as members continued to enroll in the program. She stated that engagement remained high and that Vida’s net promoter score remained relatively strong despite member disruption. She reviewed aspects of the program that were functioning well and areas potentially requiring adjustment. She then presented enrollment statistics.
The Vice Chair asked whether the twenty-three thousand (23,000) members in transition were those using GLP-1 medications for weight loss. The Deputy Executive Director confirmed that they were. The Vice Chair then asked how many members would lose coverage. The General Counsel stated that the data was not readily accessible but that the GIC had requested it.
Commissioner Robinson stated that, based on data he had received, he estimated that approximately sixteen thousand (16,000) of the twenty-three thousand members taking GLP-1 medications were also being treated for heart conditions. He also asked what was meant by the “Vida eligible population” figure of 252,970. The Deputy Executive Director explained that the figure represented the population that would meet the current criteria for GLP-1 prescriptions. The General Counsel clarified that the number represented a potentially eligible population over age eighteen and was intentionally overinclusive. The Vice Chair asked whether the figure represented the entire GIC population, and the General Counsel clarified that it was only a subset of the total population.
The Vice Chair asked whether members diagnosed with M.A.S.H. would also need liver fibrosis to qualify for GLP-1 coverage or whether a diagnosis alone was sufficient. The Executive Director stated that he believed both criteria were required but noted that staff was continuing to seek clarification.
Commissioner Pepin asked whether members who still qualified for GLP-1 medications would be required to continue engaging with Vida. Ms. Scibelli stated that she would address that question later in the presentation.
Ms. Scibelli then presented Vida outreach statistics and member demographic engagement data.
The Vice Chair asked whether the GIC was seeing the predicted 40% reduction in GLP-1 usage through the Vida program. Ms. Scibelli stated that the program remained within its grace period and that no participants had yet been removed from coverage. Commissioner Edmonds requested that future drop-off data include demographic information.
The Vice Chair stated that she had heard from many members without secondary diagnoses who questioned the value of engaging with Vida now that coverage was ending. Ms. Scibelli reiterated her commitment to obtaining more granular data from Vida and CVS. She acknowledged members’ concerns about the usefulness of participation while coverage was being discontinued but stated that transition planning through Vida was underway. She clarified that the grace period would end on March 31, 2026.
Ms. Scibelli then presented additional details regarding transition planning with Vida. She stated that the GIC had been working with Vida to develop a transition plan and was exploring options to support members and potentially restructure the contract. She stated that options under consideration included winding down the contract; maintaining the contract so Vida could continue prescribing GLP-1 medications through direct-pay or other channels; or maintaining a shorter-term contract focused on behavioral and dietary support as an off-ramp for members. She stated that the Commission would receive updates as decisions were made and that further information would be presented at the May meeting. She also stated that communications regarding future arrangements were expected to be distributed to members before March 31, 2026.
Vice Chair Kaplan asked who would prescribe GLP-1 medications for members who continued to meet eligibility requirements. The General Counsel stated that members’ community physicians would write the prescriptions and that prescriptions would then go through CVS utilization management review. The Vice Chair also asked whether there would be an appeals process. The Deputy Executive Director stated that the process would revert to CVS’s standard medication review and appeals procedures.
The Vice Chair stated that, based on member comments and concerns, the GIC should consider winding down the Vida contract entirely. Commissioner Edmonds stated that she agreed with ending the contract.
The Executive Director noted that he had heard the Commissioners’ expectations regarding future restoration of GLP-1 coverage and assured them that GIC staff shared the goal of eventually restoring that coverage.

VI. Other Business/Adjournment
Presented by Bobbi Kaplan, Vice Chair, and Matthew Veno, Executive Director
The Vice Chair called for any new business and then requested a motion to adjourn. Commissioner Ambler moved to adjourn and Commissioner Pepin seconded the motion. There was no opposition, and the meeting adjourned.


        GROUP INSURANCE COMMISSION MEETING   Thursday, March 5, 2026   8:30 A.M. - 10:00 A.M.     Meeting held virtually through online audio - video platform (ZOOM) and accessible on the GIC’s  YouTube channel.     MINUTES OF THE MEETING     NUMBER:    Seven Hundred and Two   DATE:     March 5, 2026   TIME:     8:30 A.M.   PLACE:   Meeting held virtually through online audio - video platform (ZOOM) and  accessible on the GIC’s YouTube channel     Commissioners Present   VALERIE SULLIVAN (Chair, Public Member)   BOBBI KAPLAN (Vice Chair, NAGE)   MATTHEW GO RZKOWICZ (Secretary of Administration and Finance) Designee: Dana Sullivan   MICHAEL CALJOUW (Commissioner of Insurance) Designee: Rebecca Butler   DARREN AMBLER (Public Member)   MARTIN CURLEY (Public Safety)   TAMARA P. DAVIS (Public Member)   JANE EDMONDS (Retiree)   GERZINO GUIRAND (Council 93, AFSCME, AFL - CIO)   EILEEN P. MCANNENY (Public Member)   KRISTIN PEPIN (NAGE)   DEAN ROBINSON (Massachusetts Teachers Association)   JASON SILVA (Massachusetts Municipal Association)   ANNA SINAIKO, Ph.D. (Health Economist)   CATHERINE W EST (Public Member)    

